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SUM-100
(T fgym,%glsc AL) (SOLO PARA LSO DE LA CORTE)
NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:
(AVISO AL DEMANDADO):
GENERAL NUTRITION CORPORATION and

DoES |~ OO

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:
(LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):

CHRISTINA LABAJO, HOWARD CLARK AND BERRY SAIZON

NOTICE! You have been sued. The court may decide against you without your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read the information
below.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after this summons and legal papers are served on you to file a written response at this court and have a copy
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call will not protect you. Your written response must be in proper legal form if you want the court to hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information at the California Courts
Online Self-Help Center (www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), your county law library, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannot pay the filing fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee waiver form. If you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, and your wages, money, and property
may be taken without further warning from the court.

There are other legal requirements. You may want to call an attorney right away. If you do not know an attorney, you may want to call an attorney
referral service. If you cannot afford an attorney, you may be eligible for free legal services from a nonprofit legal services program. You can locate
these nonprofit groups at the California Legal Services Web site (www./lawhelpcalifornia.org), the California Courts Online Self-Help Center
(www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), or by contacting your local court or county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and
costs on any settlement or arbitration award of $10,000 or more in a civil case. The court's lien must be paid before the court will dismiss the case.
jAVISO! Lo han demandado. Sino responde dentro de 30 dias, la corte puede decidir en su contra sin escuchar su version. Lea la informacion a
continuacion.

Tiene 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO después de que le entreguen esta citacion y papeles legales para presentar una respuesta por escrito en esta
corte y hacer que se entregue una copia al demandante. Una carta o una llamada telefénica no lo protegen. Su respuesta por escrito tiene que estar
en formato legal correcto si desea que procesen su caso en la corte. Es posible que haya un formulario que usted pueda usar para su respuesta.
Puede encontrar estos formularios de la corte y mas informacion en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California (www.sucorte.ca.gov), en la
biblioteca de leyes de su condado o en la corte que le quede mas cerca. Si no puede pagar la cuota de presentacion, pida al secretario de la corte
que le dé un formulario de exencién de pago de cuotas. Si no presenta su respuesta a tiempo, puede perder el caso por incumplimiento y la corte le
podra quitar su sueldo, dinero y bienes sin més advertencia.

Hay otros requisitos legales. Es recomendable que llame a un abogado inmediatamente. Si no conoce a un abogado, puede llamar a un servicio de
remisién a abogados. Si no puede pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisitos para obtener servicios legales gratuitos de un
programa de servicios legales sin fines de lucro. Puede encontrar estos grupos sin fines de lucro en el sitio web de California Legal Services,
(www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California, (www.sucorte.ca.gov) o poniéndose en contacto con la corte o el
colegio de abogados locales. AVISO: Por ley, la corte tiene derecho a reclamar las cuotas y los costos exentos por imponer un gravamen sobre
cualquier recuperacion de $10,000 6 mas de valor recibida mediante un acuerdo o una concesion de arbitraje en un caso de derecho civil. Tiene que
pagar el gravamen de la corte antes de que la corte pueda desechar el caso.

The name and address of the court is: . . CAS WR: '

(El nombre y direccion de la corte es): San Francisco Superior Court ("’“"%Vu { oot 1 9 - 5 7 Ll 5 Q
400 McAllister Street ~ L
San Francisco, CA 94111

The name, address, and telephone number of plaintiffs attorney, or plaintiff without an attorney, is:
(E! nombre, la direccién y el niimero de teléfono del abogado del demandante, o del demandante que no tiene abogado, es):

Wyatt A. Lison, 429 Fourth Avenue, Law & Finance Bldg., Ste. 1300, Pittsburgh, PA 15219 (412) 281-8400

DATE: MAR 122019 DEPUTY CLERK Clerk, by . % , Deputy
(Fecha) (Sech - (Adjunto)
(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (f 10).)

(Para prueba de entrega de esta citation use el formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)). BOWMAN 1 m \
— NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served

1. [_] as an individual defendant.
2. [] as the person sued under the fictitious name of (specify):

3. (1 on behalf of (specify):

under: [_] ccP 416.10 (corporation) [] CCP 416.60 (minor)
[ cCP 416.20 (defunct corporation) [_] CCP 416.70 (conservatee)
[] CCP 416.40 (association or partnership) [ | CCP 416.90 (authorized person)

[ 1 other (specify):
4. [ 1 by personal delivery on (date):

Page 1 of 1
Form Adopted for Mandatory Use SUMMONS Code of Civil Procedure §§ 412.20, 465
Judicial Council of California www.courtinfo.ca.gov
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Wyatt A. Lison (SBN - 316775)

wlison@fdpklaw.com

FEINSTEIN DOYLE PAYNE
& KRAVEC, LLC

429 Fourth Avenue, Suite 1300

Pittsburgh, PA 15219

Tel.: (412) 281-8400

Fax: (412) 281-1007

John Peter Zavez (pro hac vice to be filed)

jzavez@akzlaw.com

ADKINS, KELSTON & ZAVEZ, P.C.
90 Canal Street, Suite 120

Boston, MA 02114

Telephone: (617) 367-1040

Facsimile: (617) 742-8280

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS

D

Court of Calffornia
Sg%%gct)yr of San Francisco

MAR 122019

uty Glerk
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

CHRISTINA LABAJO, HOWARD CLARK,

and BERRY SAIZON
Plaintiffs,
V.

GENERAL NUTRITION CORPORATION
and DOES 1-100

Defendants.

0G0 -19-574459

COMPLAINT FOR:

CASE NO.:

(1) Violation of the Unfair Competition
Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§
17200, et seq.

(2) Violation of the Consumers Legal
Remedies Act, California Civil Code
§8§ 1750, ef seq.
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Plaintiffs Christina Labajo, Howard Clark and Berry Saizon (collectively Plaintiffs), by and
through their attorneys, bring this action against Defendant General Nutrition Corporation (“GNC”),
and allege as follows based upon their personal experiences as to their own acts and status, and based
upon the investigation of their counsel, and information and belief as to all other matters:

NATURE OF THE CASE

1. This is an action primarily seeking declaratory and injunctive relief to restrain GNC
from selling dietary supplements mislabeled with unlawful disease claims in California, commonly
referred to as “Health Fraud” by federal food and drug regulators (hereinafter the “Products’).

2. As explained herein, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”), after a
deliberative process and in its final rule in implementing regulations defining the use of
structure/function claims on dietary supplements, determined that supplements cannot expressly or
impliedly claim to lower cholesterol because it implies treatment for coronary heart disease, rendering
the claim misleading and making the product classified as a drug subject to pre-approval based on
safety and efficacy. Despite the misleading nature of cholesterol claims on supplements, GNC labels
five supplements as being able to maintain and/or support normal or healthy cholesterol levels, without
clarifying that they cannot lower cholesterol by stating that they may only maintain cholesterol levels
that are already within a normal range, which FDA has said is necessary to avoid implying treatment
for hypercholesterolemia and coronary heart disease.

3. Similarly, after the same deliberative process and within the same final rule, FDA
determined that dietary supplements cannot expressly or impliedly claim to build, strengthen or
maintain bones in menopausal women because it misleadingly implies treatment for osteoporosis, a
condition typically experienced by women who have gone through menopause and makes the product
a drug subject to pre-approval based on safety and efficacy. Yet, GNC labels three supplements

targeted towards menopausal women as able to help build, support, and/or maintain bones.

' The term Products used herein refers to GNC Healthy Cholesterol Formula (Exhibit 1), GNC
Policosanol (Exhibit 2), GNC Ultra 35 Probiotic Complex with Cholesterol Support (Exhibit 3), GNC
Probiotic Solutions Adult 50 Plus (Exhibit 4), GNC Women’s Ultra Mega 50 Plus Vitapak (Exhibit
5), GNC Women’s Ultra Mega Menopause Vitapak (Exhibit 6), and GNC Women’s Ultra Mega 50
Plus (Exhibit 7).
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4. The labeling of GNC’s Products as being able to cure, treat, mitigate or prevent
hypercholesterolemia, coronary heart disease, and/or osteoporosis in menopausal women is both
unlawful, it is also a “Health Fraud” because GNC’s Products have not been approved as safe and
effective for these intended purposes. Under the U.S. Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (“FDCA”) and
identical provisions in California’s Sherman Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Law, Cal. Health & Safety
Code §§ 109875, et seq (“Sherman Law”), products that claim to cure, treat, mitigate or prevent
diseases or conditions like hypercholesterolemia, coronary heart disease and osteoporosis are defined
as drugs. Sherman Law § 109925 and FDCA § 201(g)(1). Drugs may not be manufactured, labeled
or sold without prior approval of FDA. 21 U.S.C. §§ 331(d) and 355(a); Sherman Law § 111550. In
violation of these laws, GNC’s Products shown in Exhibits 1-7 are labeled to cure, treat, mitigate or
prevent hypercholesterolemia (i.e., high cholesterol), coronary heart disease, and/or osteoporosis
without prior FDA approval. This identical conduct serves as the sole factual basis of each state law
cause of action brought by this Complaint, and Plaintiffs do not seek to enforce any of the state law
claims raised herein to impose any standard of conduct that exceeds that which would violate the
FDCA and regulations adopted pursuant thereto. Thus, Plaintiffs’ state law claims are not preempted
by the FDCA because Plaintiffs’ claims for state law violations seek to enforce the same standard of
conduct required by federal law and Plaintiffs’ state law claims are based upon GNC’s breach of that
standard of conduct. For any of Plaintiffs’ state law causes of action, the allegations supporting those
causes of action and any forms of relief sought for those state law causes of action, Plaintiffs expressly
disclaim any attempt to hold GNC to a higher standard of conduct than what is required under federal
law, and do not seek any form of relief based on conduct exceeding that which is required under federal
law. All state law causes of action asserted in this Complaint, the allegations supporting those state
law causes of action asserted herein and any forms of relief sought for those state law causes of action
asserted herein shall be read consistent with the limitations set forth in this paragraph.

5. Accordingly, Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203 and
Cal. Civ. Code § 1780(a)(2) to enjoin GNC from continuing to sell dietary supplements California
labeled with the unlawful disease or treatment claims alleged throughout this Complaint, and to

recover the amounts Plaintiffs paid for the GNC products they purchased.
2

COMPLAINT




[~ - =)

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This Court has jurisdiction and venue pursuant to Cal. Civ. Code §§ 395.5, 410.10 and
1780(d) over the claims raised in this Complaint for the following reasons: (i) GNC regularly sells,
advertises, markets and/or distributes the Products in San Francisco County and throughout the State
of California; (ii) a substantial portion of the underlying transactions and events complained of herein
occurred in, and Plaintiff Clark resides in, San Francisco County; and (iii) Plaintiff Clark is a citizen
and resident of California who resides in San Francisco County and purchased GNC’s Products in San
Francisco County. Attached hereto as Exhibit 8 is a declaration in compliance with Cal. Civ. Code §
1780(d).

THE PARTIES

7. Plaintiff Christina Labajo is a citizen of the State of California and a resident of San
Bernardino County, California. In or around March 2017, Ms. Labajo purchased at least one of GNC’s
Women’s Ultra Mega Menopause Vitapak product from GNC stores in San Bernardino County,
California, and paid around $45.00 for the product. The GNC Women’s Ultra Mega Menopause
Vitapak Ms. Labajo purchased specifically indicated it was a “Menopause Formula” with ingredients
that “act as mild estrogens.” The GNC Women’s Ultra Mega Menopause Vitapak product Ms. Labajo
purchased was also labeled as being a clinically studied multivitamin, as being able to “help[] build
and maintain bone density,” and as containing a formula of vitamins and minerals “shown to support
natural bone building.” The GNC Women’s Ultra Mega Menopause Vitapak product Ms. Labajo
purchased was also labeled as supporting “heart and cholesterol health,” as providing support “for
cardiovascular system function,” and “healthy blood lipid levels.” Ms. Labajo purchased GNC’s
products relying, in part, on these labeling statements made on the product’s label believing the
product was lawfully marketed to cure, treat, prevent or mitigate osteoporosis and coronary heart
disease, and more effective than other similar dietary supplements sold by other manufacturers that
were not labeled to help treat, prevent or mitigate osteoporosis or coronary heart disease. Had the
GNC product that Ms. Labajo purchased not stated or implied that they could help cure, treat, prevent
or mitigate osteoporosis and coronary heart disease, this would have affected Ms. Labajo’s purchasing

decisions in that she either would not have purchased the GNC product, she would not have been
3
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willing to pay the price she did for the GNC product, she would have purchased a lesser quantity of
the GNC product, she would have purchased another dietary supplement product, or she would have
purchased a similar dietary supplement that was less expensive.

8. Plaintiff Howard Clark is a citizen of the State of California and a resident of San
Francisco County, California. Between July 2016 and February 2017, Mr. Clark purchased at least
the following GNC dietary supplements: GNC Healthy Cholesterol Formula, GNC Probiotic
Solutions Adults 50 Plus and GNC Ultra 35 Probiotic Complex with Cholesterol Support. Mr. Clark
purchased these products from GNC stores in San Francisco County, California and paid between
$9.00 and $40.00 for each of the products purchased. The Healthy Cholesterol Formula product Mr.
Clark purchased was prominently labeled as able to “support[] normal, healthy cholesterol &
triglyceride levels with clinically studied black tea extract.” The Probiotic Solutions Adults 50 Plus
product that Mr. Clark purchased was prominently labeled as “support[ing] healthy cholesterol &
vitamin D levels.” The Ultra 35 Probiotic Complex that Mr. Clark purchased was prominently labeled
as “[c]linically studied support for healthy cholesterol levels,” which is reinforced on the back label
which states the product contains “[s]pecialized probiotic strains for cholesterol support.” Mr. Clark
purchased GNC’s products relying, in part, on the above-identified labeling statements made on the
products’ labels believing they were lawfully marketed to help lower his cholesterol level, and thereby
help cure, treat, prevent or mitigate coronary heart disease, and more effective than other similar
dietary supplements sold by other manufacturers that were not labeled to help lower cholesterol level.
Had the GNC products that Mr. Clark purchased not stated or implied that they could help lower his
cholesterol level, this would have affected Mr. Clark’s purchasing decisions in that he either would
not have purchased the GNC products, he would not have been willing to pay the price he did for the
GNC products, he would have purchased a lesser quantity of the GNC product, he would have
purchased other dietary supplement products, or he would have purchased a similar dietary supplement
that was less expensive.

9. Plaintiff Berry Saizon is a citizen of the State of California and a resident of Los
Angeles County, California. Between October 2017 and February 2018, Mr. Saizon purchased at least

the following GNC dietary supplements: GNC Healthy Cholesterol Formula and GNC Probiotic
4
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Solutions Adults 50 Plus. Mr. Saizon purchased these products from GNC stores in Los Angeles
County, California and paid around $20.00 for the GNC Healthy Cholesterol Formula and around
$40.00 for the GNC Probiotic Solutions Adults 50 Plus. The GNC Healthy Cholesterol Formula Mr.
Saizon purchased was prominently labeled as able to “support[] normal, healthy cholesterol &
trigliceride levels with clinically studied black tea extract.” The GNC Probiotic Solutions Adults 50
Plus that Mr. Saizon product was prominently labeled as “support[ing] healthy cholesterol & vitamin
D levels.” Mr. Saizon purchased GNC’s products relying, in part, on the above-identified labeling
statements made on the products’ labels believing they were lawfully marketed to help lower his
cholesterol level, and thereby help cure, treat, prevent or mitigate coronary heart disease, and more
effective than other similar dietary supplements sold by other manufacturers that were not labeled to
help lower cholesterol level. Had the GNC products that Mr. Saizon purchased not stated or implied
that they could help lower his cholesterol level, this would have affected Mr. Saizon’s purchasing
decisions in that he either would not have purchased the GNC products, he would not have been willing
to pay the price he did for the GNC products, he would have purchased a lesser quantity of the GNC
product, he would have purchased other dietary supplement products, or he would have purchased a
similar dietary supplement that was less expensive.

10.  General Nutrition Corporation is a corporation organized under the law of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. General Nutrition Corporation is the successor-by-merger of GNC
Franchising, LLC, a Pennsylvania corporation. General Nutrition Corporation’s principal place of
business is located at 300 Sixth Street, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222. General Nutrition Corporation
is a health and wellness company that sells various nutritional supplements and vitamins throughout
the country. General Nutrition Corporation is identified as the “Distributor” of the Products at issue
in this lawsuit. See Exhibits 1-7.

11. Defendants Does 1 to 100, inclusive, are sued under fictitious names pursuant to Code
of Civil Procedure section 474. Plaintiffs allege, based on information and belief, that each of the
defendants sued under fictitious names is in some manner responsible for the wrongs and damages
alleged below, in so acting was functioning as the agent, servant, partner, and employee of General

Nutrition Corporation, and in taking the actions mentioned below was acting within the course and
5
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scope of his or her authority as such agent, servant, partner, and employee, with the permission and

consent of General Nutrition Corporation or other Doe co-defendants.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

BACKGROUND OF DRUG AND DIETARY SUPPLEMENT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
12.  The purpose of food and drug laws, including the FDCA, FDA regulations and the

Sherman Law, is consumer protection. These laws and regulations were enacted, in part, to prohibit
the sale of misbranded food and drugs.

13.  Amongst other things, the FDCA and Sherman Law require companies wishing to sell
a “drug,” defined as an article “intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment, or
prevention of disease in man or other animal,” to prove to the FDA that it is safe and effective prior to
marketing it. 21 U.S.C. § 321(g)(1)(B); Sherman Law § 109925(b).

14.  To be proven safe and effective as a new drug, drug companies must first test it and
send FDA’s Center for Drug Evaluation and Research (“CDER”) the evidence from these tests to
prove the drug is safe and effective for its intended use. A team of CDER physicians, statisticians,
chemists, pharmacologist, and other scientists review the company’s data and proposed labeling to
determine whether the drug’s health benefits outweigh its known risks.?

15.  Itis a violation of federal and California law to sell a new drug without prior approval
by FDA. 21 U.S.C. § 355(a); Sherman Law § 111550.

16. A dietary supplement, unlike a drug, is a food intended to supplement the diet that bears
or contains a dietary ingredient such as a vitamin, mineral, herb or other botanical, or amino acid. 21
U.S.C. § 321(ff).

17.  Foods, including dietary supplements, are misbranded if they characterize the
relationship of a nutrient to a disease or health-related condition unless made in accordance with the

FDCA. 21 U.S.C. § 343(t)(1); Sherman Law § 110670.

2 See FDA “How Drugs are Developed and Approved” available online at
https://www.fda.gov/Drugs/DevelopmentApprovalProcess/HowDrugsareDevelopedandApproved/de
fault.htm.
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18. A statement characterizing the relationship of a nutrient to a disease or health-related
condition on a dietary supplement may be made only if, “the statement claims a benefit related to a
classical nutrient deficiency disease and discloses the prevalence of such disease in the United States,
describes the role of a nutrient or dietary ingredient intended to affect the structure or function in
humans, characterizes the documented mechanism by which a nutrient or dietary ingredient acts to
maintain such structure or function, or describes general well-being from consumption of a nutrient or
dietary ingredient.” 21 U.S.C. § 343(r)(6)(A).

19. A description of the role of a nutrient or dietary ingredient intended to affect the
structure or function in humans is commonly referred to as “structure/function” claims. A
structure/function claim may only be made if “the manufacturer of the dietary supplement has
substantiation that such statement is truthful and not misleading.” Id. § 343(r)(6)(B).

20.  Importantly, a dietary supplement may not explicitly or implicitly claim to diagnose,
cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent a specific disease or class of diseases. 21 U.S.C. § 343(r)(6)(C). For
purposes of this law, a “disease” is damage to an organ, part, structure, or system of the body such that
it does not function properly (e.g., cardiovascular disease), or a state of health leading to such
dysfunctioning (e.g., hypertension); except that diseases resulting from essential nutrient deficiencies
(e.g., scurvy, pellagra) are not included in this definition. 21 C.F.R. 101.93(g).

21.  Pursuant to 21 C.F.R. § 101.93(g)(2), a statement on a dietary supplement claims to
diagnose, cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent disease if it claims, explicitly or implicitly, that the product:

(1) Has an effect on a specific disease or class of diseases;

(ii) Has an effect on the characteristic signs or symptoms of a specific disease or class of

diseases, using scientific or lay terminology;

(iii) Has an effect on an abnormal condition associated with a natural state or process, if

the abnormal condition is uncommon or can cause significant or permanent harm;

(iv) Has an effect on a disease or diseases through one or more of the following factors:

(A) The name of the product;
(B) A statement about the formulation of the product, including a claim that the product

contains an ingredient (other than an ingredient that is an article included in the
7
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definition of “dietary supplement” under 21 U.S.C. 321(ff)(3)) that has been regulated
by FDA as a drug and is well known to consumers for its use or claimed use in
preventing or treating a disease;

(C) Citation of a publication or reference, if the citation refers to a disease use, and if,
in the context of the labeling as a whole, the citation implies treatment or prevention of
a disease, e.g., through placement on the immediate product label or packaging,
inappropriate prominence, or lack of relationship to the product's express claims;

(D) Use of the term “disease” or “diseased,” except in general statements about disease
prevention that do not refer explicitly or implicitly to a specific disease or class of
diseases or to a specific product or ingredient; or

(E) Use of pictures, vignettes, symbols, or other means;

(v) Belongs to a class of products that is intended to diagnose, mitigate, treat, cure, or

prevent a disease;

(vi) Is a substitute for a product that is a therapy for a disease;

(vii) Augments a particular therapy or drug action that is intended to diagnose, mitigate,

treat, cure, or prevent a disease or class of diseases;

(viii) Has a role in the body's response to a disease or to a vector of disease;

(ix) Treats, prevents, or mitigates adverse events associated with a therapy for a disease, if

the adverse events constitute diseases; or

(x) Otherwise suggests an effect on a disease or diseases.

22.  Claims that a product can cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent a disease require prior
approval by the FDA and may be made only for products that are approved drug products, or for foods
with FDA-approved “health claims.” 21 U.S.C. § 355(a) (drugs); 21 C.F.R. 101.93 (f) (food). Failure
to obtain prior FDA approval of such a claim in either case renders the claim illegal in violation of 21
C.F.R.101.93 (f) if a food, or 21 U.S.C. § 355(a) if a drug.

23.  The promotion, advertisement, distribution or sale of substances represented as being
effective to diagnose, cure, mitigate, treat, or prevent disease (or other conditions), or provide a

beneficial effect on health, but which have not been scientifically proven to and approved by the FDA
8
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as safe and effective for such purposes, is called “Health Fraud.” FDA Compliance Policy Guide
120.500 Health Fraud.’

24.  FDA classifies Health Fraud as a “major economic cheat” even when a person’s health
is not directly at risk. Id.

25.  Even if a Health Fraud does not pose a direct risk to a person’s health, it can be an
indirect health risk when a person relies on a Health Fraud in delaying or discontinuing appropriate
medical treatment. Id.

GNC’S HEALTH FRAUD

26.  GNC sells several products which explicitly or impliedly claim to treat, cure, prevent
or mitigate hypercholesterolemia, coronary heart disease and/or osteoporosis without being approved
by FDA as being safe or effective for these purposes. Although the products are labeled to treat, cure,
prevent or mitigate these diseases or conditions, the products have not been scientifically proven to
and approved by the FDA as safe or effective at mitigating, treating, curing or preventing any disease

or condition. Accordingly, GNC’s products described below are Health Frauds.

Products Claimed to Cure, Mitigate, Treat or Prevent
Hypercholesterolemia and Coronary Heart Disease

27.  Hypercholesterolemia is a condition characterized by high levels of cholesterol in the
blood. While the body needs cholesterol to build cell membranes and make certain hormones, too
much cholesterol increases a person’s risk of developing heart disease and stroke.*

28. People with hypercholesterolemia, i.e., high cholesterol levels, have a high risk of
developing coronary artery disease. This occurs when excess cholesterol in the bloodstream is
deposited in the walls of blood vessels, particularly in the arteries that supply blood to the heart
(coronary arteries). See picture below from the U.S. National Institutes of Health. The abnormal

cholesterol buildup forms clumps called plaque that narrow and harden artery walls. As the plaque

3 Available online at https://www.fda.gov/ICECI/ComplianceManuals/CompliancePolicyGuidance
Manual/ucm073838.htm.

4 See https://www.nhlbi.nih.gov/health-topics/high-blood-cholesterol.
9

COMPLAINT




3

Lo

LA

1

gets bigger, i can clog the srteries and restrict the flow of biood to the heart. 1§ oo much cholesierst

Fuilds ap, the blood cannot flow through to the heart which can canse 2 beart attack.,

PR budd g e

By iR mrnerrrnre;

-
39, Due to the seriousness consequences of hypercholesternlemia. and the wany health and
concomitant medivation considerations that go into s trestment, hypercholesterclenua 13 not
amenable to seifediagnosis and treatment, meaning adeguate directions for ase cannot be writlen so
that 2 layperson can use 3 produst intended 1o veat bypercholesterolemia safely.® FDA has not
approved over-the-counier medicings to weat hypercholesterolemia. and mstructs consumers 1o
consult thetr physicians sbout medicings 1o help treat the condition.” ONC’s products described herein
have not been approved by FIRA as safe snd effective for treatment of hypercholesterolemia, Any
claim that 2 dictary supplonient can trest, core, prevent o mitigate hypercholesterolumis o coronaty
heart disease is # drug vlaim. and a Health Fraod as it has new been approved by FDRAL
34 After the passage of the Dietary Supplement Heslth and Hdocation Act of 1994
(“DSHEA™. which sstablished regulatory reguivements and procedures for stracture/ unstion claims,
FI3A took public comments and issued regulations to help delineste what would be towiul

structure/functinn claims, and andawiul drug claims. See Finad Bule on the Begulations on Statements

SSee o, FDA Warning Letter to Muoltinwounity, Inc. datod September 25, 2014 aveilsble ondine at
i}ttps:/,/x ww fda pov/ICECHEnforcement Actions/ WarningLetters/ 201 4uemd 17431 i';{ mn.

° Sep FDA, High Cholesteral - Medicines To Help You availahle  online  a
htipsi/fwwer fdagov/ForConsuners/Bysudience/uom HHESSS huw,
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Made for Distary Supplements Doncorning the Effect of the Product on the Structure or Function of
the Rody. 65 Fed. Reg. 1000-01 (Jan. 6. 2000} {to be codified at 21 CFR. Pant 101 {hereinafler,
“Finad Rade™). This inchaded claims on dictary supploment regarding cholesterol levels, B at 1613+

9,

31, FI3A has long acknowledged thar muny people think of cholesternd sodely in terms of

the negative role of bigh cholesterol and beart discasy. Information readily available o consumers on

> Y . ~ Ay . . “
the internet advises of the Hnk between bigh cholesterol and coronary beart disease.’

-

32, Dhie o consumer perception Hnking high cholestorol with heart disease, the avatlability
of information discussing the association between high cholesterol lovels and coronary heart disease,
the serious health consequences resulting from hypercholestorolemia, and the need for professional
advice to treat hypercholesterclemia, FDA andertook careful considerstion and deltberation im
determiniug what might be considered an acceptable structure/function claim for cholestersd levels
made in the labeling of dietary supplements, and what would be considered an unlawiul disease claim
prohibited by 21 L F R § 101.93. See Final Rule ot 1015-18.

33, FixA acknowledged that references in divtary supplement labeling to physiplogic
markers or sympiores of 3 disease that are quantifiably linked w thet disease in an official government
hisalth agency sonmnary sigfement or conserss report. such as high cholestern! and coronary heant
discase, would be appropriately teated as implied disease clabms.  Final Bule at 1018, FDA
specifically noted that hypercholesterolemia is not just a physiologic warker for coronary heart
dizease, bul is a disease conditiony itself, A

34, Thus, any claim that a dietary supploment can fower cholesterol, explicil or imphici,

an unlawlul drug clabis and vot a permissible structure/function clatro. Pinal Rade at HHS. FOA

determined this despiie the then 105, Surgeon General advocaung for the ability of distary

supplements 1o be marketed for lowering cholesterol due to the prevalence of heart disease. 24 FDA
! See, ey, “What Cause high cholesterol?” avatlahle At
ht{rsf-”/vs«‘mw medicalnewstioday comfarticles/s E‘?“’ phy,  “High  cholesterol”™  available  a ¢

m{; sfhwww mayosiinie org/disegses~-e fsmizimm'hw%fv%; ood-cholesterols VEHOMS-CHUBES 5y 0~
20350800, and “High Cholesterol RM\ Factors: avatlable at hitps:f{wm&,s@s;-.{wmd,a:vom/':.':izeicsmr{}%
management/high-cholesteral-risk-factoys,

1§
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conciuded that claiming a dietary supplement can lower cholesterol is prohibited becanse the use of

inelfective therapies in persons with elovated cholesterol, which can delay or preven
yeatment, Hself poses significant public heatth rigks, fd.

e

3

(¥ 4

Even though an explicit or hopliclt clabm that a dietary supplement
cholesternd fs an onlawiul disease claim beocause clovated cholesterol level i
hypercholesterclomia and an important risk factor for hearl disease, having cholesterod

pormal range 13 vot a sign or visk factor of diszase,

t effeciive

cary bower
# sign of

swithin the

36, Due e the wasion behween conmumer undersianding of the Hak betwesn high

cholesterol fevels and heart disease, and the recognition that normal cholestere! levels are imporiant,

to ensurs that g diciary supplement’s label does not mislesdingly imply the ability 1o care. mitigate,

weat or prevent high cholesterol, FDA determined that claims Haking a sebstance and cholesterol fevel
mugt make clear that § can ouly support or maintain cholesterol levels for people whose cholesterol
fevels are alrcady in a normal range. Final Bule at 101818,

37, FDA also vonsidered whether maintaining “healthy cholesterol” levels would be an

accoptable structure/function clabme Final Rule s 1015, Many consumers understand there is a

difference between high-density lipoprotein, ofien ealled the “good cholesierol” and low-density

fipoprotein, often called “bad chelesterol™  Given this wnderstanding., FDA determingd that
Lod

references o “healthy cholesterol” conld be misleading as this wom often relers 1o b

lipoproteins which are believed 1o be beneficial. /o at HHS

38, FDA thus rejected comwnents suggesting that a dictary supplerent
supporting “normal” or “healthy” cholesters! tevels doss not imply treatrent for hyperchole

zh density

fabeled a3

sterotemis

and coronary heart discase, because it implies lowering “bad cholestornl,” or helping with “good

cholesteral” Final Bule at 1018-19 The exmople FDA gove of an acceptable strusture function claim

for vholesters! that would not misleadingly suggest lowering “bad” cholesterol, or raising “good”

cholesterol is, “helps to maintain cholesterol levels that are already within the normal rang

FED,

‘

ve hitps:/iwaw cde.gov/cholesterol/id hdlhtm,

B oat
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38, Despite FDAs clear guidance that any clzim on 3 dietary supplemend about chelesterol
level must ruake it clear that it van only help matntain or support cholesterol levels that gre already
within the normal range so that it is not implying thet it can help cure, treat, prevent or miligste
bypercholesterolemia and/or voronary heart disesse, GMO sells several dietary supplements implying

that they carchelp lower “had” cholesters! lovels, or mise “good” cholesterol levels, bevause they state

they can support healthy or normal cholesterot levels as shown and described below,
P
44, GNC Healthy Cholesternd Formuls (Exhibit 1), Policosanol (Exhibit 23 Ulta 35

Probintic Complex with Cholesterol Support {Fxhibit 3), Probistic Solutions Adults 30 Plus (Exbibi
43y, Womern's Ulira Mega 30 Plus Vitapak (Exhibit 5), and GNOs Women's Ultrs Moega Menopause

YVitapak (Exhibit 63 each buplicidy claim to cure, mitigaie, treat, or prevent hypercholesterolomia.

P

&,
A

As shown shove, GMIs “Healthy Cholesterol Formule” i labeled as being a
SPHYSICIAN FORMULATEDR NUTRITHON SOLUTIONIY that “[sluppons newroal, healthy
cholesteral & trighveeride fevels with clinically stodied black tea extracts.” Exhibat 1 The product’s
name iself, “Healthy Cholestero! Formula,” has been found misleading by FIA a5 referring to high
density lipoproteins, or “good cholesterol” See Final Bule at 101819, Morzover, GNC s Healthy

Chulesterst Formula does not state that # will only support cholesterot fevels for people whose

cholesternd lovels are already ju a normal vrange.
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42, As shown sbove, GMO7s Policosanst is labeled, “Imjay help lo maintain normal,

healthy cholesterel lovels”

cholesizrol levels for people whose cholesters! levels are already i 2 normal range.

43, As shown shove, GMUs Ultra 33 Probiotic Complex with Cholesterol Support is
fabeled, “{rilinically studied support for healthy cholesterol levels)”

fabel which states the product contains “[sipecialized probiotic sirains for cholesterol support

Fahiba 3, GRETeUlra 35 P

support cholesterol levelds for p

Exhibit 7. GNOs Policosano) does not state that # will andy support

which is reinforced on the back

obintic Complex with Cholesters] Sapport does not staze that it wil ondy

sple whose cholesters! levels are already in 8 normal range.

“{) ;i}i A 7"'
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44, Aa shown above, GNO s Probiotic Solutions Adult 30 Plos is labeled, “Injay support
healthy cholesterol” & vitamin D fevels” Exhibit 4. The back states # is, “[cllinically studied strain
that may support hesithy cholesterol levels, and emerging rescarch suggests it may also suppon

5 Probintic Soiutions Adulis 50 Plas does not

improvements i vilamin B3 levels” Hxhibio 4. GNC
atate that #t will only support cholesterol levels for people whose cholesterst levels are already ina

normal rang

45. As shown shove, GNC s Women's Ultrs Mega 50 Plus Vitpak product is labeled as

“containing over 30 clinically studied gredients” for, amongst other things, “Heart Health™ Exhibst
The product is also labeled that it, “{blas EPA, which is inportant for cardiovascular and circulatory

health and promotes healthy cholestersd and Wriglveeride levels” Exhbibis 3.0 GNC's Women's Ultra
BMege 50 Plus Vitapak does not state that it will only support cholesterol levels for people whose

cholestero! lovels are already 1 a normal range.

J—
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46, Ax shown above, GMNOs Worsen's Ultra Mega Menopause Viapak product 15 labeled
as being able to “support a women's overall health,” incloding “beart and cholesterol health with
omega-3s” Exhibit 6, GMO's Women's Ulirs Mega Menopaese Vitapak product does not state that

it witl only sapport cholesters! levels for penple whose cholesterot tevels are already in a normal range.

47. The labeling of GNC's Healthy Cholesterod Formula, Policosans], Ultra 35 Probintic
Complex with Chilesternt Support, Probiotic Solutions Adult 3¢ Plus, GNO's Women's Ultra Megs

50 Plos Vitapak and Women's Ultrs Mega Menopause Vitapak as being able to reaintain and/or
support normal or healthy cholestero] levels, without alse stating that they will only maintain and/or
support chiolestern levels for prople whose cholesterol fevels are already in a normal range, vuphies
that the products will help cure. mitigate, treat or prevent hy percholesterolemia and/or coronary heart
disesse by helping lower bad cholesterol

48, (NC’s Healthy Cholestere! Formula, Policosansl, Ultra 35 Probiotic Complex with
{“holesterol Support, Probintic Solutions Adult 30 Phas, GNO's Women's Ulira Mega 50 Plus Vitapak
or Women's Ultra Mega Menopause Vitapak products have not been approved by FDA to awe,
miitigate, treat or prevent hypercholesterolemia or coronary heart disease.

49, FDA has issued warning fetters t companies selling distary supplements claiming
maimain cholestern! levels withool explaining that they will valy maintain cholesterol whes W is

already within o novmal range because thelr labeling indicated they are intended for use in the cure,

sitigation, treatment, or preveniion of disease. See, e.g, FDA Warning Letter to Nature’s Health
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Company, LLC dated June 30, 2017% FDA Warning Letter to Orgen Nutrateuticals, fnc, dated

Octesber 28, 20430

5. FDRA fasges warning letters such ~only oy viclations of regulatory

significance.”” ! FDA warning letters are intepded Yo correct viclations of the statutes oy regalations”
and “communicate]} the agency™s position on a matter.” Jdl at 4-2 10 43,

Products Clatmed to Cure, Mitigate, Treat vr Prevent Ousoporesis
51, Osteoporosis, or porous bone, is o disease characterized by low bone mass and

P

strustural deterioration of bone, leading to fragility and incrcased risk of fractures.’”

52, Certain risk factors are Hinked to the developmert of osteoporosis and contribute 1o the
Hkelihood of developing the disease, including sbnormad absence of menstrual periods and low

estrogen levels caused by menopause. ™ While menopanse Is 2 pormal part of aging and not o disease,

one of the changes in a woman's body experiencing menopause ¢ bones become less dense and more
virinerabie fo fracture. ™ Due to the decrease in bone density, post-menopausal woroen are morg

visinerable 1o ostzoporosis.’”

K Avaitable online at
Hutpss/wwee fdagov/icecVenforcementactionsvarningletters 201 T uemb66680 bun,
s Avsilshle onling at
hitps /v we fda govICECH EnforcomentActions/ WarningLetters/2001 Moomd 71 27% him.

F3A,  Begulstory  Procedures  Manual  at po 420 {Mar. 2007%  awsilable  at

http: /oo Bl gov/downloads/ICECH amplianceManuals/RegalatoryProceduresManuaVUUMO74
334 pedf,

12

“httpsiwww hong

e
@

athgovihesith-info/bone/osteoporosisfoverview,

o
.

HoSee MWIH “What s Mennpause?” avatiable online at hitpa/ewwwoasianthgovhealth/what-
MISHORAUsg,

=N ~3

~}
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53. Menopause happens when 2 woman’s ovarizs stop making estrogen.”” The average age
a woman enters mennpause i3 51 vears, but I can happen sooney naturally and will happen i g woman
has her ovaries revoved, U
54, Estrogen normally acts in the body o help inhibit bove resorption (hsakdown).'
Having low amounts of estrogen belug produced by the body, o no estrogen, will cause bone
breakdown.

85, There is no cure for ostooporosis, but there are g large number of preseription
medications and therapy options depeuding on the poatient’s health, comuorbid diseases and other

medications.”’

(iiven the serious conseguences of osteopornsis, and the compleity of treatment
options, osteoporosis is a discase that is not amenable to seif-diagoosis or selfvreaument.

56, In bmplementing the regulstions governdng structurefonction claims on dietary
supplements, FDRA commented ou the labeling of dictery supploments with ¢laims about supporting
hones and/or hone fragility. Final Rule at 1013, 17-18. FDA concluded that while 2 ¢laim that 2
nutrient can help build or maintain strong bones. without more, iz a penmitted structure funstiog claim,
when sssociated with ostsoporoals or another condition the same claim s an onlawiul disease claim
because it implios trestment for ostenporosts, Ll at 1005

§7. Given the association betwesn menopanse angd osteoporosis, FDA conciuded that

claim that g dietary supplenient can maintain, build, strengthen or support bong health andior bous

 See “Hormones and Healthy Bones” from the Nattonal J‘bsisopoms%s Foundation, avsilsbie on
at hitpsedn.nof org/swp-contentiuplonds/ 201 /02 Hormome s-and-Healthy -Bones-Lpd{ at 6.

Tk a6 SBen WebMD “Yowr  Guoide 1w ’»?eno*;;mzse” :fwaiia%‘is snline  at
hiigzs@ focww webmd comAnenopmse/guide/menopause-information® ] (menopause slats around age
51 and completed within 4 vears).

¥ For review, see Siddigol, Jawed AL and Nicole O Partridyge.  Physiological Bone Remodeling:
Systenic Regilation and Orowih Facter Involvoment. Fhivsiology {Bethesda), 2016 May 2133035~
i 1132

L3
45 availabie online at htps//www phvaislopyv.ors/dot/Gl 10,115 /phyaicl 00061 2014

P
[
[

- sew, €, ?zi‘iim”""‘,*«"vwf fda.covitoronsumerstbyvandience/forwomenfuem 11835 luny
hito i 9?‘:&:‘;1:&1}&‘;}&83? h.o fkﬁ,z*d{‘{‘wv:u%“ﬁ’%i"n"’iii*‘s«". and To., Kristl N et sl Osteoporosiss A
Review of Treatment (};}-;mrzs. Pharmacy and Therapeutics, 2018 ?“%3 43{2% 92104,

i8
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density combined with an express or implied clam about menopause - - acluding largeting the
advertising towards post-menopaussl women — expressly or implicdly claims that the product can help
cure, mitigate, freat or provent steoporosia, See Final Rule at 1013 (indicating a statoment that a

digtary supplement can prevent bone fragility In post-nsenopausal women is a disease treatment ot

prevention claimy id. at 1014 (indicating the required disclaimer that z claim on 8 dictary supplement

o

had not been reviewed or approved by FDA was Insefficient to make a clatm about preventing bone
fractures in post-menopausal worsen dug to bone loss fnto o lawful clabmy id at 1017 {cluiming that
product prevents bone fragility in post-menopausal women clearly implies that the produst pravents
pateoporosis), id. at 1018 {claiming that a dictary supplement will maintain normal bone density n

post-menopausal women s a disease clabm because post-mennpausal women oh aracteristically
develop nsteoporosis, a disease whose principal sign Is decreased bone yaass). Thus, the labeling ol a
distary supplement a3 being able 1o walntain, bulld, strengthen or support bowes 1o menopausal womes
is an unlawiul disease claim

SB. Desphie FDA s clear guidance that a dictary supplement cannot by labeled as being able
to maintain, build, strenuthen or sepport bove health in menopausal women, GNC’s Wonmen's Ultra
Sega 50 Phus, Women's Ultrs Mega 50 Plas Vitapak and Women's Ulua Mega Menopause Vitapak
products explicidy or implicitly claim 1o cure, mitigate, treat of prevent osteoporosis for menopausal
Wnen.

G, (s Women's Ultra Mega 30 Plus Vitapak, pictured on Page 15 sugwe, by s very
name js targeted towards women 50 years and older who ave typically menopausal. Exbibit 5

60, GHOs Women's Ultrs Mega 50 Plus Vitapak is lsbeled as being o “CLIICALLY
STUDIED MULTIVITAMINT for, among other things, “Bone Health” Exhibit 5. GMO"s Wormen's
{tra Mega 50 Plus Vitapak s also labeled to "ifieature]} MB % which is clinically studied to support
Phe Body s nataral ability to baild and matutain healthy bones.” Exhibit 3. As GNE’s Women's Ulirg

N

Mega 50 Plus Vitapak is targeted tovards menopausal women and is labeled w build, suppon and

<

maintain hones, i s vadawiully labeled to cure, treat, prevent of mitigate ostenporosis.
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61, NS Women's Ulten Mega Mennpause Visapak, pictored on page 16 supra, 18 by Hs

bed

very name explicitly marketed wwards menopausal women. Exhibit 6. The back of the produet staies

e

it includes a “Menopsse formula” with ingredients that “act as mild estrogens

£2.  GM{'s Women's Ulz Mega Menopause Yitapak is sho labeled as being able to
“Thietpf] build and maintain boue density with 1,000 mg calcium” The back of GNU's Women's
Uttra Mega Menopause Vitapak states it containg a combination of “clinjcally studied . vitamins and
minerals desigoed specifically o emphasize the key notrients {or bone health” Exhibil 6. GNCs

Women's Ultra Mega Menopause Viupak is also labeled as boing “shown to support natural bone

building.” and as containing ingredients “which are essential notrients invebved in the formation of
the bons metrin.” Fxhibit 6. As ONC's Women's Ulira Mega Menopause Vitapah is marketed for

menopausal women and is labeled o build, support and/or maintain boge density, 1 s undawinlly

3

lsbeled 1o cure, treat, prevent or MIIRAC O3IE0POTORIS,

£3. P00 Women's Lirs Mega 50 Plus, piopured ahove, 18 by its very name targeted
owards women 50 vears and older who are typleslly menopaussl, Exhibit 7.

64, ONCTs Women's Ultra Mega 50 Plus is labeled as being o “CLINICALLY STUDED

MULTIVITAMIN for, among other things, “Bone Health.” Exhibit 7. 3NC's Women’s Ultra Mega

3 Plug is abso labeled as being able to “Strengthen]] bones with caleium and vitamin 1323, and as

containing “a poient calohie and vitorin D comphex to support sirong bones.” Hxhibit 70 As (s

20
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Wernen's Ultra Mega 50 Plus is targeted towards menopausal women and is labeled to strengiben and

No

support bones, it is valewfully labeled to cure, freat, prevent or mitigate ostenporosis

5

w3

S

65, The labeling of GN(C”s Women’s Ultra Mega 50 Plus Vitapak, Women's Ultrs Megsa

Menopause Vitapsk, and Wormen’s Ultra Mega 30 Plus ax being able to build, support, and/or maintain

L

bones implies that the producty will help cure, mitigate, trest or provent osteoporosis becase the

products are targeted twards menopsussl women who typieally experience osteoporosis,

<3

f163, Mone of ONC™s Women's Ul Mega 58 Plus, Women's Ultra Mega Menopa

Yitapal or Women's Ultra Mega 30 Plus Vitapak prodects have been approved by FIDIA for the

treatment, prevention, cure or mitigation of osteny

31538,

Labeling Products with Drug or Disease Ulabms withost FDA Approval is Misleading

7. The labeling of products that claim to sure, treat, prevent or mitigate diseases or other

hwalth related conditions, when they have not been approved a5 boing safe and ¢ffective to do so. is

. . - e ge - - - v
misieading. See FDIA Health Fraud Scams™'.

63, o the extent GNUs supploments cannot cure, treal, prevent or matigate the discases

or vonditions for which they iraply treatment, the Jabeling of the supploments is talse and misleading.

69, Fven if GMOs supplements are not completely ineffective for the advertis

TNENN

s fabeling of GNOs prodacts as dietary supplements, and not as over-the-counter (OTCT) or

gacription drags, is stil misleading as the labeling owmils information that s material 1o vonsumers.

7. Congress charged FDA with ensuring thet ol drogs {{ e, prescripbion and OVCH are no

andy sufe and effective, but that their labeling adequately informs users of the risks and benefits of the

prochuct, and that its labeling is wothfid ared not misleading.

n

7t FDA makes its detenmination on all drug approval {{ e, presoription and OTCY based

a1 a comprehensive setentific evaluation of a4 prodect’s risks and henefits under the condittons of use

preseribed, recommended, or suggested tn the labeling. 21 US.CL§ 355(d)

s

e

72, FDA considers not only complex clinival issues related to the use of the product in

sndy populations, but also important and practical public health issues pertaindog to the use of the

I3

b
i

2 Avatiable online at bitpsi/vww fda gov/ForConsumers/Protect Y ourse it/ HenlthPraed/detault .

E\;t
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sroduct in day-to-day slinical practice, such g5 the nature of the disease or canéiti{m for which the
woduct will be indicated, and the need for risk management messures (o help assure in chindeal practice
that the product reaintains its favorsble henetivisk balance. 71 Fed. Reg. 3922, 3934 (Janvary 24,
20063,
Prescviption Drug Labeling

73 For prescription drugs, the centerpiece of risk management generatly is the labeling
which reflerts thomash FDA review of the pertinent scientific svidense and coromunicales to health
gre practidoners the agency s formal, suthoritative conclusions regarding the conditions under which
the product can be used safely and effectively. FDA carefully controls the vontent of labeling for a
prescription drig, because such labeling s FDA s principal tool for educating health vare professionals
sbout the risks and benefiis of the approved product o help ensure safe and effective use. FDA
contivuously works to evaluate the latest gvailable scientific information fo monitor the sufety of

oy
14

products and to incorporate information it the product’ < labeling when sppropriate. 71 Fed. Rog. at

kol

{).

3934
74, Labeling, as defined by the FDOA, "means sl lebels and other written, printed, or

sraphic matier (13 spon any article or any of ity comainers or wrappers, or (1) acoompanyisg such

40

article” 21 L1800 4 32 )
TS The requirements for preseription deug labeling are ser forth in 21 CF R § 20156,
Amongst other things, presoription drug labeling must include:

a. A swommy of the essential selentific information needed for the safe and

effective use of the drug

b, the informative must be informative and accurate
¢,  the information may not be promotional in tone, and nothing falsy or miskeading

may be nchaded;

no imphed claims or seggestions for use f evidence of safoty or efficacy 18

e

facking; and

e, based, whenever possible, on buman festing

r;f\

Y

oo
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i 76, The FDA spproves preseription drug labels based on ity analysis of a vew drug

3 1 apphication or biologics Hoense application, and covtalns information “necessary forsafe and effective
3iuse.” 71 Fed, Reg 391101, 3927 (anuary 24, 2006}

<

The primary purpose of proscription drug labeling is to give healtheare practitioners

B
~%
~3

[¥3)

the information they need o prescribe drogs sppropriately.  Ad at 3961 The information in

& i preseription drug labeling, and the formst it is presented, i3 w give healthoare professionals the ability

“3

1o acuess, read and use deug dormation. Jd, at 3923,

i % Amongst other things, prescription drog labeling must inchude: Highlighs of

bl

g preseribing information that inclodes the dosage: eoncise summary of any boxed warnings: indications

fove]

and usage; dosage and administration; dosage forms and strengths; contraindications; warnings and

114 precautions; and adverse reactions. 21 CUERL § 201.5%a),
iz 79, Preseription drug labeling must also inchsds Full Presorbing information with

i34 appropriste headings and subheadings that detail any boxed warnings: indications and usage: dosage
144 and administration; dosage forms and strengths; contraindications: warnings and precautions; adverse
K \J bl poe

canancy risks: effects on reproductive

151 resctions; drug interactions; use in specific populstions. pr

>

16 1 potential; pediatric use; geriatric use: deseription fucluding cherndeal and physical information: vlinical

174 pharmacolony: nonclindend toxicology; clinleal studies; referenves; proper stovage and handling:
& foe i o too)

2
Lo

™
e,
e
W
N
o
4
ok
[
. b
v
o,
&

181 patient counseling information,
14 50, The information muost be presented in a uniform way, with a specific format and with
4 mindmal type size requivements to make reading and understanding the mformation easy, 21 CER.§
3120057y

32 g1, The ultireate purpose of prescription drug Isbeling is to give bealthcare practtioners

23 i the information they need, in 2 uniform and easily-readable formst, to keep consumers from havm

24 i through the use of appropriate drugs. Consamers rely on thely bealth care practitioners to have all of

25 i the critical information about a deug when recommending # B a speeific purpose, Thus, the fulure

24 o label preseription drugs sccurately, with all of the reguired information and in the reguired format,

27 s material to consemers and it can head to harm through the nususe of such drogs.

Lad

COMPLAINT




e

o

&G

3

i
-~
w

OTC Drug Labeling

8z Even if GMO’s Products implied treatipent for conditions amenable 1o seif-disgnosis

pE

and freatment, allowing them to be classified as 07T drugs, the lsbeling omits iuformation that 15
material to consumers,  Indeed, proper labeling of OTC drogs may be more materisl o consamers
than presoription drug labeling because there is no professional intermediary, sach as 3 dovtor or
pharmacist, betwesn the drug and the consumer,

83, Asstated by FI3A, reading the label of an OTC drug is the most Innportant pant of taking

care of yourself or vour family when using OTC medications, especislly becasse many O1C

medicines are taken without sesing a doctor ™ The label shonld toll o consumer what a medicing is

supposed 1o do, who should or should not take i, and how 16 use L
84, Amongst other things, sl OTC drug labels must include "Diug Faers™ with a specific
graphical design to be a visual cue o consumers for introdueing required information as show below

(21 OB § 2816601

g

5% g - - . : | vy
2 FA 0 The Over-the-Counter Medicine  Labeh Tabe a  Look avatiable online  at
hitps/Aweew fda.govidrogs/emergencypreparedness/bicterrorsanddrugpreparedness/oom 13341 It
1.
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85, SAgtive Ingredients” must have an established nume. and Hst the quasdity o propotiion
of sach active ingredient immediately below 2 promivent tie to enable consumers 10 gaickly and
systematically compare ingredient within products for similar uses. 54 Fed. Reg. 13254-01, 13260

56, “Purpose” s the FDA-approved deseription of the principal intended avtion of the drug
or each active ingredient. 21 £F R § Z01.60{cH3)

&

o~

“Lises” provides the indications for use of the product, 2T CF.RL§ 201.66(c )4}

P
-~
]

“Warnings” provides specific information and subheadings ncluding whether the
product is for external use only and, as sppropriate, for rectal or vaginal use; Reye's syndrome warning

if the produst containg salicylates; aliergic reaction and asthima alert warnings: contraindications whi

consumiers should not use the product unless g doctor divects the usage:; proesssting conditions
warnings, jventle warnings; pregnancy warnings: accidental ingestion/overdose waming. 21 CEFR
§ 201.66{cH3)

59, THractions for use, such as specific age categories, how much to take, how totake, and

how often and how long o take, 21 CUERL § 2081.66{0)(5).

9. Other Information required by the FDA specifieally exchuding any promotional
material as it i generally not necessary for the safe and effective use of the product, 21 CFR.§
20Ea6icH T and 64 Fed. Beg, 13254-01, 13263,

e, Inactive lngredients are o be Hsted in accordonce with 21 CFR. § 201 .66{c}H8}.

Q2. Questions or Conuments that provides a islephone number {or 3 source to answer
gquestions shout the product. 21 CF R § 20066{cH%)

a3, Having all of the required information. and have it presenied in a unifiom way, &
material 10 consumers who wish 1o make an educated devision sbout what drags they are putting nio
their bodies, 85 well as whether it is the best and/or most econimics! product for what they are trying
to accomphish. The failure to include any of this information ou an O drug product is not only
antawiul, but it prevents vonsumers from being able to comparative shop for the most appropriate
prostuct for their needs.

G4, Unless FDA has given a specific exemption from ncluding required information on an

T drug’s label, i inchision is material to consumers. The omission of any nformation from the
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isbeling of a food or drag thet is material in Hght of the claims made for the product or the
consequences that reay result fromy using the product deems the product misleading and isbranded.
2OFROE LA
G Befused To Cease s Wrongduoing
95, On Movember 17, 2017, My, Clark and Ms. Labajo, through his counsel and pursamd
California™s Consumers Lepal Remedies Act (CLRATY, Cal Civ. Code § 1782, semt GRC a
sertificd letier potifving GMO of particelar vidations of Clvil Code § 1770, and demvanded thay GNC
correct, repair or otherwise rectify the problems associated with its unlawinl bebavior which are in
violation of Civil Code § 1770 C*ULRA Letter™) A copy of the CLRA Letler is attached herelo as
Exhibit 9 (exhibits thereto omitted).

86, GMO failed o respond 1o the CLRA Letier,

97, To date. the labels of the Products being the unlawful claims detatied hergin have not
changed. and GMO has vet to respond t the CLRA Letter,

9%, As GMO has failed to respond 1o the CLREA Letter, and the Products’ labels have not
changed, it appears GNU is and comtinues io be unwilling to change the labeling of the Products to
remove the drug clatms identified in the CLRA Letter and throughout this Cornplaint, or 1o submoil a
new drug application with FDA in order to have its prodocts approved as new drugs with appropriate
deug labeling,

Q4. (N has not stopped using or corrected, repaived or otherwise rectified the unlawial
Iaheling practices identified in the CLRA Letter and described in this Complaint.

FIRST CAUSE OF A{UTION

“Uniawinl” Business Practices in Vielation of
The Uniair Competition Law, Bus. & Prof. Code §8 17280, or seq

1 Plainiiffs hereby incorporate af} other paragraphs of this Complaint and restate them as

if fuily set forth herein,

2 The CLRA Letter also set forth claims regurding abonrmal blood glucoss levels, inflammation,
pxidative stress, and statin therapy in other of GNC s products. However, Plaintiffs are not asserting

any clabms regarding abnormal blood elucose levels, inflammation, oxidative stress, and statin therapy
i GNCs products in this Complaint,

<L A
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11, Oalifornia’s Unfalr Competition Law ("UCLTY defines unfalr business competition to
inchsde any “unlawful. onfair or fraudulent” aot or practice. Cal Bus. & Profl Code § 17200,
12, A business practics s “unlewdol” T it viclates any established siate or federal law,

2

103, Sherman Law § 1HISSO prohibits the sale, delivery or gift of any new drug withowt

e

approval of a new drug spplication by FDA or California’s Department of Health Services.

{3d.  Sherman Law § 109925 and FDCA § 201 {g} 1y define “drug” as. mmongst other things,
any ariicls used or intended for use in the diagnosis. eure. mitigation, treaument, or prevention of
disessc in humans or other anireals. Any food for which a health claim bas been spproved by FRA
pursuant o FDOA £5 403(r(1 4By and 4033} for conventinnal foods, or §§ 403ry1HE) and

A03(rHSHDY for dictary supplements, is not a drug solely becsuse the label or labeling containg such
s claim. Linlike conventional foods, distary supplersents canned by lsbelad with health ¢lalms based
o an authoritative statement of the National Academy of Sciences or a scientific buddy of the U5,
government with responsibility for public bealth protection or nutrition research,

IS, A fnew drug” is any drog which has not been proven & be sale and effective for use
under conditions preseribed, recommended or suggesied in the labeling or advertising thereof. 24
CF R § 32 Hpy Sherman Law 10998

106, As explained above, ONCs Products are now druge as they are labeled as being
intended to cure, breat. sutigate or provent hvporcholesterolemia, corouary heart disease and/or
osteoporosis in humans, However, none of GNC's Products identified in this conplaint have bee
approved s 2 new drog by FDA or California’s Department of Health Services for these purposes.

107, GNO vielsted and continues to violste Sherman Law & 111550 through the sale,
delivery or gift of each of the wew drug products identificd herein without approval of a new drug
application by FDA or California’s Deparunent of Health Serviees, and hence also violated and
vontinues to violate the "anjawiul” prong of the UCL.

HI. The Sherman Law also probibits the advertisernent of any food or drug that s
sishranded, Sherman Law § 110398, Advertisement for the purpose of the Sherman Law includes

any representations sheut a product including statements on the packagiog. Sherman Law § 109883,
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109, Sherman Law § 111440 prohibits the manuefacture. ssle, delivery, holding vr offer to

seil o mishranded drug, and & 111445 prohibits the mishranding a drug.

¥

11 Food and drugs are misbranded if their fabeling is falee or misteading in any particuiar.

Sherman Law 88 110660 and 111330 espestivelyl

111, The labeling of 3 food or drug is misleading if B fails to revenl facts that are roaterial
i Hight of other representations made. or if i fails to inclede affirmative disclosure of matorial faots
reguired by FI3A regulations promulgated pursuant to the FROA, 21 CER.§ 121

112, The Sherman Law adopts FDA regulations of food amd drugs as the faw of Califoraa.
Sherman Law 56 110100 (foody 110118 {new deugad 110111 (OTC drags).

113, GNE's Products labeled as drugs {ail o provide material information requived by P
for all drug products a5 explained above. Due to GNC s ornission of dus msterial information, the
Peosdnets are minbranded and ONC violated, and continues 1o viplate, 21 CFR § 121 and Sherman
Law §§ 110G and 1101TL

P4 Morover. due o the omission of the materis! drug information which renders the

Froducis mishranded. U”\%Q viclated, and continues o violate, Sherman Law §§ 111448, 111445,

i

iy

PEO660, 111330 by mishranding the Products, mansfacturing, selling, delivering and offering 1o

suishranded Products,

115, (GONC’s identival vonduct that violates the Sherman Law also vickstes the FROA, 2

-

UOS.0 88 33 e {hy, (), (gn 352 and 335, and FDA regulations, 28 CFR, § 20037, 21 CFR§

o)

i

20166, This identical condact serves as the sole factual hasis of each cause of avtion brought by this
Complaint, and Plaintiffs do not seek to enforce any of the state law clabms raispd herein o imposs
any standard of comluct that exceeds that which would vichate the FDCA and apphicable FIIA
regulations,

P16, By commitiing the unlewiul acts and practives alleged above, GNC has engaged, and
continues to be engaged, i unlawiul business practices within the meaning of the UCL.

117, Asaresult of GNOs unlawful conduct, GRC has obizined money froun Plaiotifts, and

Plaimiffs have suffered injury in fact and lost money or property. As such, Plaintitts request that this
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Court enjoin GNC from continaing fo vielate the UCL or vielating it in the same fashion in the future

ax discussed herein porsuant {o Cal. Bus

RES

i fully set forth herein.

19
ef seq.
128

171

Civ. Code § 176

of Tal Civ. {

13e.

been approvest ax bein

violate the CLRA In at least

A,

had characteristics v

b,

were of a particular standavd, g

the interd not o provide what they ac

123,

approved by

£F

labeling of the

Platntifls horghy

This vause of action is brought pursuant & the CLRA. Califorsia Civil Code §§ 1750,

vie and the Producis manub

By {abeling and adverty

violation of California Cn

which they did not have;

“alifornia Cvid

Products, vinlated the FDOA, FUA

. & Profl Code 317263,
SECOND CALSE OF ACTIHN

{Violation of the Consumers Leogal Bemedies Act,
California Civil Crde §8 1758, of seq.}

imcorporate ail other paragraphs of this Complaint and restate them as

15 are “consumers” within the meaning of (sl Clv. Code § 1761(d}
Plaintiffy purchases of GMC's Products are “ransactions” within the meaning of {al.

rured and sold by GONC are “goods™ within the nwaning

Products with discase and drug olatres withoul baving
safe and effective for thelr labeled purposes, (INC violated gnd continues 1o

ihe following respesis:

e § 1770{ay 5y GNC represented that the Producis

in violation of Cslifornia Uhvit Code § 177aX 7y, GMC represented that the Froducts
uality or grade, which they were not; and

Code § 1770{aM9) GNC advertised the Prodocts with

GNC knew or shoold have known that the disease and drug claims, without being

FF3A or California’s Department of Health and without the reguived drug facts on the

o

reculations, the Sherman Law and the CLRA, that

l./

suvh claims and omissions were material and that said claims and omissions would be relied upon by

consumers inchrding Platngiffs,

124,

and practice

¢ Plaintiffs purchased GNCs

As deseribed herein, GMNC obtained money from Plainsiffs through s undawiul acts

Froducts identifted i 94 6% velying, in part, on the
29
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Products” tabeling which was material to Flaintis” decisions o purchose the producis, As aresult of

GNCs conduet, Plaintiffs have suffered injury in fact and lost money or property.

125, Accordingly, parsuant to Cal Civ, Code § 1780a)2), Plaintiffs requests that the Counrt

enjoin GNC from continuing fo violate the ULRA by selling or offeriug for sale the Produsts in
California, or cansing the Products 1o be sold or offered for sale in Ualifornis,

126, Wihh respect i the violations of Civil Code § 1770 a3 to which GMNL wag notified of
the problems with is Products” jabeling, but refused o repair or otharwise rectify the problems with

itw unlawiul acts, Plaimiffs bereby reguest damages for thelr purchases of the GNO Producis as

pravided for in Civil Code § 1780, including:

3. Actual damages;

b, restitution;

e, any other reliel which the Court desims proper; and
d. court costs and sttormeys” fees.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs demand 2 jury trial on alf causes of action snd/or fasues so triable,

PRAYER FOR RELIEY

WHERFFORE, Plaintiffs pravs for veliel and judgment against OMO as follows:

Al A declaration and {vder enjoining GNC from misbranding, munufacturing, selling,
delivering, bolding or offering for sale, seliing or offering for sale, delivering ov proffening for delivery
the Products lubeled with unapgwoved drug or disense claims in vislation of California’s Sherman Law
and other applicable laws and rogulstions as specified n this Complaint.

B Compensatory damages or restitution in such amount that Plaintiffs patd to purchase
GINCTs products for the Second Cause of Action ondy,

¢, An Order awarding Plaintitts their costs of suit, attorneys” fees and pre-and posi-

judgment interest; and

i3, Such other and further relief as the Court may deam just and proper.

~
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Dated: Mareh 12, 2019

.y
frd

429 Fourth Avenue, Sulie 1300

Pitthugreh, PA 1521%

Telephone: (4123 2818400
‘sosiriler (4123 28141007

Jobn Peter Zavez (pro has vice t be filed)
ADEIMS, EELSTON & ZAVEZ, PC,

94 {anal Street, Soite 128

Boston, MA 02114

Telephone: (6173 367-1040

Faoumibe: (5173 742-8280
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